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The Hampton County Courthouse was constructed in 1878 as the official seat of govern-
ment for the newly created county of Hampton. The only courthouse Hampton County has ever
known, the Hampton County Courthouse was built in the Victorian Italianate style which was
popular in the last quarter of the 19th Century. Although the architect of the building
1s unknown, local tradition indicates that elements of the courthouse design were derived
from similar courthouses designed in the state during the 1820s by Robert Mills.

As originally constructed, the Hampton County Courthouse was a two-story structure
constructed of brick laid in the common bond pattern. Three bays wide in the "ABA" con-
figuration, the structure featured 4/4 windows capped with stilted segmental arches on
the second floor and flat brick lintels on the first floor. The hip roof had four tri-
angular pediments with open cornices and rondelles located in the center of all four sides
of the building. Originally there were four corbel capped chimneys located on the west
side of the building and one corbel capped chimney located on the east side. The entabla-
ture which encircled the courthouse was bracketed, as was typical of Victorian period
architecture, The original entrance portico was located in a projecting bay on the front
(north) facade.Symmetrical semi-elliptical stajrways, supported by brick, rose to the
second floor. The balustrade and hand rails were wrought iron. The flat roofed portico
was supported by four Tuscan columns. Brackets around the cornice matched those featured
on the remainder of the building.

In 1925, the Hampton County Courthouse was renovated and additional wings were added
to the north (front) and south (rear) facades according to plans drawn up by
Lafaye and Lafaye, Architects of Columbia, South Carolina. The building's current appear-
ance dates from the 1925 renovation. The design of the north and south additions follows
the same general style of the original structure. Each wing is two bays deep, which makes
the entire structure ten bays deep. Treatment of the entablature, pediments, corner pilas-
ters and windows match those of the 1878 building. In 1925, all chimneys were removed
from the original courthouse and the main entrance was changed from the second to the first
floor. The stairway and portico were removed and both doorways were recessed approximate-
ly two feet. At present, a narrow portico supported by four Tuscan columns covers the
main entrance. The second floor doorway is Tocated behind a semi-elliptical arch.

The interior floor plan of the courthouse remains essentially as it was originally.
The architraves of the original doors remain intact, as do many of the window lintels.

Plans are currently underway for the restoration-renovation of the courthouse. In
1977, the building was sandblasted as a preliminary part of this project. Plans for the
restoration-renovation include a placement of a portico similar to the original on the
front facade and the placement of an additional wing across the rear of the building.

SURROUNDINGS: The Hampton County Courthouse is located in the central square of Hampton,
South Carolina, a town of approximately 2600 people. Hampton is the county seat of Hampton
County, an agricultural area whose population is approximately 15,000.

Also Tocated within the nominated acreage are two small modern annexes situated
directly to the rear of the-courthouse, and a circa 1935 two-story brick annex located
directly to the east of the courthouse. All three of these annexes house county offigeg.
They have been included within the nominated acreage because of their very close proximity
to the courthouse and their location in the courthouse square.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Located in the center of the town of Hamppon, South Carolina, the Hampton County
Courthouse was constructed in 1878 as the seat of government for the newly created Hampton
County. Since that date, the Hampton County Courthouse has been a focal point of communi-
ty life. Today, the Courthouse is widely regarded by residents of Hampton County as the
most notable landmark remaining in the county.

In 1877, a group of citizens residing in the northwest section of Beaufort County
petitioned the General Assembly of South Carolina to form a new county in order to pro-
vide them with better political representation. As a result, on February 18, 1878, the
General Assembly enacted a law which established Hampton County as the thirty-third county
in the state., Named .after Governor Wade Hampton, the new county was to be administered by
a Board of five County Commissioners who were empowered to establish a county seat and
provide suitable buildings for county activities. A site for a new county seat was chosen
on the basis of its central Tocation. In a spirit of public interest, prominent local
citizens donated land for the courthouse square and building materials for the construc-
tion of the courthouse building. Although the architect chosen for the new courthouse is
unknown, Tocal tradition indicates that the plan of the building was drawn from similar
courthouses designed in the state during the early 1800s by Robert Mills. The Hampton
County Courthouse was dedicated by Governor Wade Hampton in 1878.

The town known as "Hampton Courthouse" soon grew up around the new courthouse build-
ing and in 1879 the town was officially incorporated. (This name "Hampton Courthouse"
was subsequently shortened to Hampton.) Several citizens instrumental in the construction
of the courthouse built substantial Victorian residences in the new county seat and by
1879 Hampton had the county's first newspaper, The Hampton Guardian. Subsequently, the
Hampton County Courthouse has served as the focal point of activity in town and county
events for 100 years. Until 1976 all county offices were housed in the Courthouse and
the building is still in active use as the governmental center of Hampton County. Close-
ly connected with all aspects of 1ife in Hampton County, the courthouse square has for
thirty-six years been the site of the Hampton County Watermelon Festival. One of the
oldest festivals in South Carolina, this yearly event has been of great local importance
to the area.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Located in the center of the Town of Hampton, in the County of Hampton, State of
South Carolina, the Courthouse Square is bounded as follows: North by Elm Street
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or U. S. Highway 278; on the east by East First Street; south by South Oak Street;
and on the west by West First Street or U. S. Highway 601.
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* Supplemental Enclosure
+, Map; of Hampton,South Carolina

Towcountry Council of Governments
1975  Scale~ 1" = 2000°
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